TOWNSHIP OF LOWER MAKEFIELD
ZONING HEARING BOARD
MINUTES — AUGUST 1, 2006

The regular meeting of the Zoning Hearing Board of the Township of Lower Makefield
was held in the Municipal Building on August 1, 2006. Chairman Kirk called the
meeting to order at 7:33 p.m.

Those present:
Zoning Hearing Board: Barbara Kirk, Chairman
Rudolph Mayrhofer, Vice Chairman
David Malinowski, Secretary
Paul Bamburak, Member
Gregory Smith, Member
Others: Robert Habgood, Code Enforcement Officer

John Donaghy, Township Solicitor

James Majewski, Township Engineer

James Watson, Township Conflict Engineer
Allen Toadvine, Zoning Hearing Board Solicitor
Grace Godshalk, Supervisor Liaison

APPEAL #03-1235(A) — CARA MIA, INC.

Ms. Kirk stated the Board received a letter dated 7/31/06 from Mr. Koopman,
representing the Township on this matter, indicating that the Board of Supervisors

had not had an opportunity to review the latest Plan and requested that the matter be
continued to the Zoning Hearing Board’s meeting of September 19, 2006. She stated the
Applicant’s attorney, Mr. VanLuvanee, concurs with this request. Mr. Toadvine stated
Mr. VanLuvanee has also waived the time limits through September 19, 2006.

Ms. Kirk moved, Mr. Mayrhofer seconded and it was unanimously carried that the Cara
Mia matter be continued to the Board’s Hearing of September 19, 2006.

APPEAL #06-1372 — PETER ORLOFF AND JOY GRACE

Ms. Kirk stated this matter was continued from the 6/20/06 Hearing. Exhibit B-1 was
marked which is a letter dated 8/1/06 to Mr. Majewski from the Bucks County
Conservation District. She stated Mr. Majewski met with the Bucks County
Conservation District at the property today along with Ms. Grace, and at that meeting
there was discussion that the Conservation District will be working with the property
owners to minimize the flooding and make necessary repairs to the property. The Plan to



August 1, 2006 Zoning Hearing Board — page 2 of 16

be implemented and developed will take approximately six to nine months. Ms. Kirk
stated the property owners indicated a prior willingness to work with the Conservation
District, and she would therefore recommend that this matter be continued for a period of
six months provided the Applicants issue a written letter to the Township waiving any
time limits on the Application.

Mr. Orloff and Ms. Grace were present. Ms. Kirk reminded them that they were still
under oath. Ms. Kirk stated the Board would be willing to grant a continuance for six
months to a date certain of 2/6/07 to give them time to work with the Conservation
District in implementing a Plan and getting it developed. She stated she understands that
after the Plan is completed, there may still be a need for Variances from the Board. She
advised that the Township will need to have a written letter from Mr. Orloff and

Ms. Grace waiving the time period for the Board to make a decision on the Application.
This was acceptable to Mr. Orloff and Ms. Grace.

Ms. Kirk moved, Mr. Malinowski seconded and it was unanimously carried that the
Appeal be continued for six months to a date certain of 2/6/07 with the Condition that the
Applicant submit a letter in writing to the Township waiving any time constraints on the
pending Application.

APPEAL #06-1379 —- TERENCE AND SHANNON POULTON

Ms. Kirk stated this matter was continued from 6/20/06. Mr. John Koopman, attorney
was present.

Ms. Kirk stated at the last Hearing no documents were admitted into evidence. She stated
she understands that the Plan that was attached with the Application has since been
modified. She asked if they are submitting both Plans or just the latest version.

Mr. Koopman stated he would like to review the history of the project and provide the
amendments to the Application. He stated the first amendment is to eliminate their
request for a side yard Variance. He stated they have attempted to work with the
neighboring property owners on the side of the proposed garage. He stated the
neighboring property owners, the Gunshores, are opposed to the side yard Variance; and
they are therefore eliminating the request for the side yard Variance. He stated because
of the re-configuration of the garage a new Plan was prepared by Mr. Skinner dated
7/28/06 which was provided to the Board. This Plan was marked as Exhibit A-1.

Mr. Koopman stated they would also like to amend the impervious surface request and
are asking for a small increase from 25.2% which was on the original Plan to 25.9%.

He stated this property has an existing impervious surface of 33.6%, and this condition
has existed for thirty years. He stated the original Plan showed this being reduced to
25.2% and they would like to amend this to 25.9%. They are now only requesting relief
from the impervious surface requirements to allow for impervious surface 0f 25.9%.



August 1, 2006 Zoning Hearing Board — page 3 of 16

Mr. Marshall stated he is requesting Party Status on behalf of his clients, Peter and
Roslyn Gunshore, 866 Weber Drive.

Mr. Jeff Skinner, engineer, Mr. Terence Poulton, Ms. Shannon Poulton, and
Ms. Roslyn Gunshore were sworn in.

Mr. Poulton stated he and his wife purchased the property in September, 2005 and were
previously tenant/renters since July, 2001. Mr. Poulton stated he resides there with his
wife, three children, his mother-in-law, and father-in-law. He stated his mother will soon
reside there as well. He stated his uncle also resided in the property for the last eight
years until he passed away in May. His children are two, seven, and nine. Mr. Poulton
stated they are the caregivers of their parents which is why they are planning renovations
to the home. He stated while his father-in-law is in very good health, his mother-in-law
has a number of disabilities. He stated when the renovations are complete, his mother
will also move into the home; and she too has a number of disabilities. Their Plans are
predicated on creating an environment to enable their relatives to live a respectable life.
He stated they have mobility problems and may need the use of a power chair.

Mr. Koopman stated one of the Plans attached to the original Application was a Plan of
Survey dated 3/23/06, and this was marked as Exhibit A-2. This Plan was shown on the
easel this evening. Mr. Poulton noted the Plan and stated currently there is a home on the
property which was built in 1969. The home currently has four modest bedrooms and
one very small bedroom upstairs. Mr. Poulton stated there is an 8 2’ by 9’ sitting room
on the first floor of the house which is where his Uncle resided for the last few years. He
stated because of his condition, they know that the house needs to be modified to
accommodate their aging relatives. The house currently has a two-car garage, and the
plan is to convert the two-car garage into handicap-accessible space with a disabled-
accessible bathroom. The garage is currently a side entrance garage, is used for storage,
and has been used for storage since they have resided on the property. Mr. Koopman
asked where they park their vehicles, and Mr. Poulton stated they are parked in the
driveway.

Mr. Koopman stated the Plan shows extensive impervious surface in the rear, and

Mr. Poulton stated there is 2,000 square feet of concrete in the rear yard which was
placed there in 1977 when the Pool was installed. He stated there is a pool, the cabana
area, and a slab for one of the existing sheds. There are two shed s on the property both
of which are used for storage.

Mr. Skinner showed the proposed Plan (Exhibit A-1) which was prepared 7/28/06.

Mr. Poulton stated they hired an architectural firm from Virginia and did discuss the
project with the surrounding neighbors regarding their likes and dislikes. Mr. Poulton
stated they are planning to enlarge the family room to provide easier flow for handicap
access. The existing garage will be converted into a handicap-accessible bedroom and



August 1, 2006 Zoning Hearing Board — page 4 of 16

bathroom. They have also bumped out the kitchen to make easier access for a power
chair to be able to independently gain access to the appliances. They will have a galley
kitchen and a breakfast room has been added to the side. Above the family room they
propose a new master bedroom noting the bedroom he and his wife are currently using is
9% ‘by 9'%’.

Mr. Koopman stated originally they proposed on their first Plan which was dated 3/23/06
and submitted with the original Application, a more traditional two-car garage.

Mr. Poulton stated their original proposal was a two-care garage with some rear storage
to accommodate the removal of the sheds and the slabs on which they currently sit.

The architect also provided a breezeway to eliminate the need for a 30’ ramp across the
front of the home because the front door grade is currently 30” above grade and this size
ramp was required to accommodate 12.1” of drop for every inch of grade for a handicap-
accessible ramp. He stated the neighbors were not in favor of the proposed large ramp.
He stated they did discuss with the neighbors the various alternatives for the new
proposed garage. He stated one of these alternatives was to have handicap ramps in the
front and rear of the property. This would have eliminated the need for the breezeway,
but a majority of the neighbors objected to this alternative on aesthetic and other grounds.
He stated he agreed that it was unappealing and the breezeway would have provided
independent, free-flow for anyone in a power chair to the front and rear yard, interior of
the home, and the garage area without any need for assistance to elevate them.

Mr. Poulton stated the neighbors, with the exception of the Gunshores, preferred the
original Plan; and the Board has been provided with a sheet signed by the neighbors
indicating they were pleased with that design. Mr. Koopman noted that Plan would have
required a side yard Variance, and Mr. Poulton agreed. The side yard requirement is for
15’, and the original Plan would have been at its closest point 5.6 from the Gunshore

property line.

M. Poulton stated as a result of the Gunshores' objection, they then presented a different
Plan for a two-car garage which would have increased the side yard to 8’ to 9°. He stated
the architects re-configured the garage, narrowed the breezeway to 42° which was the
minimum needed for someone to access the property in a wheelchair, and narrowed the
garage to 23’ rather than 24°. If they park to the side, they will still have 3’
maneuverability for someone in a wheelchair to maneuver around the vehicles in the
garage. Mr. Poulton stated the Gunshores advised him that they were not in favor of any
side yard Variance.

Mr. Koopman asked the distance between the Applicant’s side property line, and the
Gunshores’ house, and it was noted it is approximately 63°. Mr. Poulton stated the
division between the two properties is covered by a substantially grown-in greenbelt.
that averages in width from 20’ to 75’ in the rear of the property.







































